
Minutes​ ​of:

The​ ​Student​ ​Senate

Thursday,​ December 2,​ ​2021

11:30​ ​a.m.​ ​-​ ​1:30​ ​p.m.

Sarani Millican, chair, Student Senate, called the meeting to order at 11:31 a.m.

1.​ ​Administrative​ ​Response​ ​to​ ​Senate​ ​Actions​ (Information​)

● Resolution on Demilitarization of UMN Policing Forces
Approved by the Student Senate: February 25, 2021
Administrative Response: Pending

● Resolution Concerning Caste-Based Discrimination
Approved by the Student Senate: September 30, 2021
Administrative Response: Pending

2.​ ​Approval of the Minutes​ ​for​ Previous Student Senate​ ​Meetings (​Action​)​
Sarani Millican, chair, Student Senate Consultative Committee (SSCC) and Student Senate

Motion:​ To approve the minutes from the following Student Senate meetings:
● November 4, 2021 Regular Meeting

Hearing no discussion, a vote was taken, and the motion was approved.

3.​ ​Assembly/Association​ ​Updates​ (Information)
All members of the Student Senate Consultative Committee (SSCC)

● Karen Coenen, SSCC member, Rochester Student Association (RSA), stated that RSA
has been working on a process for students within their student conduct office to have
their student records expunged. They hope to present their work to the administration
soon.

● Karissa Grapes, SSCC member, Professional Student Government (PSG), said that PSG
has recently amended its governing documents to clarify open and closed meetings and to

1

https://docs.google.com/document/d/17ULzFnxHS-kyuk-XLJOBXBEPi3dc9C9rx1ZEcCJaTpo/edit?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/document/d/19OhnI1R8ENcyuG3rqh3_q8cIu7Kwn3AMaIHlXTJuyr4/edit?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O5K1R27R8fCPX3bMN9eEO7XS3GlMtjC9lX7enSUMUtg/edit?usp=sharing


give themselves the power to remove disrespectful members. They are also planning for a
spring gala for all professional students.

● Nick Wallenhorst, SSCC member, Minnesota Student Association (MSA), said that MSA
recently passed a resolution calling for the University to change its liberal education
requirement regarding the environment to an environmental justice curriculum. He also
noted that the College of Biological Sciences (CBS) changed its student minimum wage
to $15 per hour and is hoping to work with CBS leaders to enact a similar change among
other colleges.

● Scott Petty, ex-officio representative, Senate Committee on Finance and Planning
(SCFP), stated that the committee learned that the University’s endowment has grown
significantly over the past year or so and is likely in the top ten of universities in the
country. The committee was also provided an overview on recent real estate acquisitions
and planning. Petty further informed the committee of the recent hiring of a new assistant
chief operating officer and expressed concerns that the hiring process for that position did
not include much student consultation.

● Lucas Simpson, ex-officio representative, Senate Committee on Educational Policy
(SCEP), stated that he was unable to attend last week’s SCEP meeting, but noted that
SCEP discussed the results of the Graduate Student Experience in the Research
University (gradSERU) survey, which included new items related to health and wellness
and COVID-19. The committee also addressed the policy surrounding syllabus
requirements.

4.​ ​Student​ ​Senate/Student​ ​Senate​ ​Consultative​ ​Committee​ ​Chair​ ​Report​ (Information)
Sarani Millican, chair, Student Senate Consultative Committee (SSCC) and Student Senate

Millican reported that University Senate Governance meetings would continue to be held via
Zoom during the spring semester. She said this is mainly due to the fact that there is ongoing
uncertainty with the pandemic and attendance has been strong during Zoom governance
meetings. Millican further announced that the recommendation from the M Safe committee will
be coming out later this month and further consultation is likely on the Student Senate agenda for
the spring semester.

The Science Court, an honors-level program, will likely be bringing forward a resolution to the
Student Senate in the spring on the issue of S/N grading. She asked that student senators bring
forward any resolutions that they have been working on in a timely manner.

Finally, Milican reported that the Office of Higher Education will be implementing a monthly
group called the Direct Admissions Minnesota Pilot Program. The goal is to increase admission
from underrepresented communities into higher education. Millican asked for a student senator
to volunteer on the committee and encouraged those interested to contact her directly.

5. Discussion on Ongoing COVID-19 Policies (Discussion)
Jill DeBoer, director, Health Emergency Response Office (HERO)
Dave Golden, director of public health and communications, Boynton Health
Katharine Bonneson, assistant vice president, University Health and Safety

2



Millican introduced Jill DeBoer, director, Health Emergency Response Office (HERO), Dave
Golden, director of public health and communications, Boynton Health, and Katharine
Bonneson, assistant vice president, University Health and Safety, who joined the meeting to
provide an update on the University’s efforts to further handle the COVID-19 pandemic and
answer students’ questions. DeBoer initiated the discussion by acknowledging that the
University and the world have been dealing with constantly evolving information surrounding
the pandemic. The state of Minnesota saw its second case of the Omicron variant that morning
and has credited the early detection of the variant to the state’s strong public health systems. She
noted that President Joe Biden recently called Omicron a cause for concern, but not panic.
DeBoer indicated that further masking requirements will likely be extended well into the spring
semester to attempt to limit the spread of Omicron on campus. She further noted that layered
public health strategies, including vaccinations, testing, masking, and distancing, are more
effective methods of limiting the spread of the virus.

Golden stated that the University has had to be responsive to pandemic conditions at the
moment. At this point in time, strategies include expanding access to testing as demand has gone
way up. Unfortunately, he said, it is hard to be proactive in these situations as rapidly changing
conditions cause the University to be more reactive. Bonneson added that the University is
consistently looking to make better strides to accommodate the community by making sure
effective masks are available and airflow in classrooms is adequate.

Millican opened the floor to student questions and highlights were as follows:
● Leah Reiss, student senator, Law School, asked about booster shots and the lack of

communication from the University as well as student confusion about what is available
from Boynton Health. Golden replied that Boynton does have some staffing issues for
administering shots to the community, while it does have an ample supply of vaccines.
He noted that at this current time, students would have better luck getting booster
appointments from local community resources as Boynton has about a two week delay in
appointments. Millican commented that further communications about who is eligible for
boosters would be beneficial.

● Carter Yost, student senator, College of Liberal Arts (CLA), asked about the recent
decision by the Foo Fighters to cancel their concert at Huntington Bank Stadium due to
the University not requiring certain COVID-19 preventative measures at its outdoor
stadium. Bonneson commented that the question is likely better directed to the Office of
the General Counsel, but there was likely a disconnect with what the band had as
requirements and what the University currently has in place. Yost noted that it isn't great
optics when the leading research university in the state doesn't have adequate measures to
hold such an event.

● Grapes asked if students will be required to report their booster shots to the University.
Golden replied that there is no plan to require that reporting at this time as they are
focusing on fulfilling any federal vaccination mandates.

● Jaden Halabi, student senator, College of Continuing and Professional Studies (CCAPS),
asked for further clarification on booster shots and if people are required to get the same
brand as their original vaccinations. Golden said that current guidance allows people to
mix and match so there is no difference in which brand a person gets as their booster.
Halabi further commented that sometimes students forget their masks and don’t realize it

3



until they get to their classroom. He asked if more masks could be made available at
building entrances and Bonneson replied that she would look into the feasibility of that
request with Facilities Management.

● Simpson commented that there is some confusion from student workers regarding the
deadline to report their vaccination status. He asked what will happen to students if they
cannot meet the deadline. Golden acknowledged that there is a tight timeline for the
federal mandate and human resource leads will be conveying further messaging to the
different departments that are required to report to fulfill the federal mandate.

● Pavan Guttipatti, student senator, CBS, asked, with the emergence of Omicron, is there a
possibility that the University could go back to full online learning. DeBoer replied that it
is a good question because they simply don’t know the effect of this new variant. The
University is consistently reassessing itself to make sure that it can handle the changing
reallocation of resources to keep the community as safe as possible. While it isn’t
currently being discussed, he said, the University could act to pivot to online learning
similar to the way it did in 2020.

● Taiwo Aremu, student senator, College of Pharmacy, inquired about a possible solution to
Boynton’s staffing issues. He asked if international students who have previous skills in
the health sciences could assist in providing emergency services at vaccination clinics.
DeBoer stated that a service like this already exists, known as the University of
Minnesota medical reserve corps. Golden added that a barrier to adding more people to
the corps is a lack of licensing.

● Wallenhorst commented that it is getting harder to acquire masks. Bonneson noted that
there are current efforts being made to ensure that disposable masks are available in
classrooms as well as restocking its OSHA-compliant masking program where masks are
being made available to students for pick up at the Bookstore.

● Emily McGuire, student senator, School of Public Health, asked how the University was
progressing with its “spot-checking” of student vaccination records. Golden explained
that this task was handed over to the University Auditor and the verification process is
underway. He added that when a discrepancy is found, students are directly notified and
the University will work with them to resolve the issue. McGuire further commented that
the University should extend the time students can sign up for the OSHA masking
program.

6. Morris Campus Student Association (MCSA) Resolution on the Native American
Promise Plan (Discussion)
Julia Scovil, student body president, MCSA
Dylan Young, SSCC member and vice president, MCSA
Jade Allard, co-chair and organization representative, Circle of Nations Indigenous Association

Millican introduced Julia Scovil, student body president, MCSA, to present a resolution passed
by the MCSA regarding the newly announced Native American Promise Tuition Plan. Scovil
explained that President Joan Gabel recently announced that the University will expand its
tuition waiver program to first-year undergraduate students and transfer students from Tribal
colleges on all five system campuses who are enrolled citizens in one of Minnesota’s 11 federally
recognized Tribal Nations. Scovil explained that she thought the program was a great first step,
but it could be improved. Young further explained that, according to recent media reports on the

4

https://docs.google.com/document/d/13H6hTuqQRmwbvTMsYms3uOlN_UIkVRr2dKTTZvHX64k/edit?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/document/d/13H6hTuqQRmwbvTMsYms3uOlN_UIkVRr2dKTTZvHX64k/edit?usp=sharing


matter, many students felt that it was not an expansion of the existing Morris program and that
the new initiative would maintain too many barriers for it to succeed. Scovil and Young stated
that the resolution had the following goals:

● To more closely match the Native American Promise Tuition Plan to the current
parameters of the Morris tuition waiver program.

● To make the plan available to all current Native American undergraduate students
enrolled at the University, as well as graduate students.

● That student eligibility will not require full-time student status or minimum GPA
requirement.

● That the plan is made available to other tribes outside the state of Minnesota.

Millican thanked the presenters for the information and opened the floor for discussion:
● Reiss asked if the new program should match the current Morris program. Scovil replied

that while it is not necessary to copy and paste the language, it should have a similar
spirit and impact. Scovil added that there was broad support for this requested change
among Morris campus stakeholders. Reiss asked if a similar program has been
implemented at other universities across the country. Scovil said that she was only aware
of one other university, Fort Lewis in Colorado, with a full waiver for indigenous
students. Young said that this would be a nation-leading program.

● Millican asked if there would be further consultation on the resolution. Scovil said that
they had already met with Karen Diver, senior leader for Native American affairs, and
plan to further discuss the resolution with the Office of Undergraduate Education.

● Petty asked if the authors are asking for an endorsement by the Student Senate. He also
suggested adding language that encourages the University to match the spirit of the
Morris program. Scovil said she was open to incorporating those changes prior to a vote
at the next meeting.

7. Old Business
There was no old business.

8. New Business
There was no new business.

9. Adjournment
The meeting adjourned at 12:39 p.m.

Chris Kwapick
University Senate Office

5


